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Plaintiffs Natalie Pappas, Russell Marchewka, Christopher Evans, and Gina Park
(“Plaintiffs”), by and through their counsel, bring this Consolidated Class Action
Complaint against Naked Juice Co. of Glendora, Inc. (“Defendant”), on behalf of
themselves and all others similarly situated, and allege, upon personal knowledge as to
their own actions and their counsels’ investigations, and upon information and belief as
to all other matters, as follows:

NATURE OF THE CASE

1. In recent years, consumers have become more willing to pay a premium
for food and beverages that they perceive to be healthy, organic, natural and/or non-
genetically modified. As a result, the market for natural or organic foods and beverages
has grown rapidly, yielding billions of dollars in revenue for food and beverage
manufacturers.

2. Defendant manufactures, markets and sells beverages nationwide from its
headquarters in Monrovia, California under the brand name “Naked” and offers the
following products: (1) Acai Machine; (2) Berry Veggie; (3) Blue Machine; (4) Gold
Machine; (5) Green Machine; (6) Mango Veggie; (7) Mighty Mango; (8) Pomegranate
Acai; (9) Power C Machine; (10) Protein Zone; (11) Protein Zone Double Berry; (12)
Protein Zone Mango; and (13) Red Machine (collectively, the “Naked Juice Products”
or the “Products”), which are the subject matter of this action. Attached as Exhibit A
are ingredient lists and images of the labeling for these Products.

3. In an effort to capture a segment of the lucrative natural juice market,
Defendant engages in deceptive advertising that includes, but is not limited to,
prominent labeling of its Products with claims such as “All Natural” and “non-GMO,”
(i.e., free of genetically modified organisms (“GMOs”)).

4. In fact, many Naked Juice Products are not “All Natural” because they
contain unnaturally processed and synthetic ingredients, and because they include

ingredients derived from genetically modified crops and other synthetic substances.
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Further, Naked Juice Products are labeled as containing certain vitamins and nutrients,
when in fact they contain chemically distinct vitamin substitutes, often produced via
chemical processing.

5. The genetic makeup of GMO plants has been altered by scientists in a lab
for the express purpose of causing such plants to exhibit traits that are not naturally their
own. GMOs therefore are not natural by design, and entirely incompatible with
Defendant’s “All Natural” representations, as well as Defendant’s specific “non-GMO”
claims.

6. Defendant identifies its non-natural and non-juice ingredients in fine print
on the back of the Products’ packaging. The size and placement, however, are in stark
contrast to the conspicuous “All Natural” and “non-GMQO” claims, appearing in larger
print in more prominent locations on the packaging.

7. Reasonable consumers, including Plaintiffs, do not have the specialized
knowledge necessary to identify ingredients in Naked Juice products as being
inconsistent with the “All Natural” and “non-GMO” claims.

8. Defendant knows that consumers are willing to pay for all natural, and
GMO-free products, and advertises its products with the intention that consumers rely
on the affirmative misrepresentations on its labeling that the products are “All Natural”
and “non-GMO.” Further, Defendant’s omissions of the material fact that the Products
include ingredients that are not “All Natural,” but rather are synthetic and/or genetically
modified, are likely to deceive reasonable consumers.

9. Defendant knows that its labeling claims and omissions are false,
deceptive, and likely to mislead reasonable consumers.

10. Plaintiffs relied on Defendant’s false, deceptive, and misleading labeling
claims and omissions and suffered injury in fact and a loss of money with each purchase

of Defendant’s Products.
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1. As a result of Defendant’s false, deceptive, and misleading labeling and
omissions, consumers such as Plaintiffs do not receive the benefit of their bargain when
they purchase Naked Juice Products. They pay money for a product that is not what it
claims to be or what they bargained for. They pay a premium for the Naked Juice
Products when they could have instead bought other less expensive alternative food
products, and lost the opportunity to purchase and consume other, truly all natural and
non-GMO foods.

12. Plaintiffs bring claims for violations of California’s Unfair Competition
Law, Cal. Bus & Prof. Code §§ 17200, ef seq. (“UCL”), the False Advertising Law,
Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17500, et seq. (“FAL”), and the Consumers Legal Remedies
Act, Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1750 et seq. (“CLRA”). Plaintiffs seek an order requiring
Defendant to, among other things: (1) cease the unlawful marketing alleged herein; (2)
conduct a corrective advertising campaign; and (3) pay damages and restitution to
Plaintiffs and Class members in the amounts paid to purchase the products at issue.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

13. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2), because the proposed class has more than 100 members, the class
contains at least one member of diverse citizenship from Defendant, and the amount in
controversy exceeds $5 million.

14. The Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because Defendant’s
headquarters and principal place of business are in the state of California. Defendant is
authorized to, and conducts, substantial business in California.

15. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a)(1),
because Defendant resides in this District, a substantial part of the events and omissions
giving rise to this action occurred in this District and Defendant is headquartered in this
District.

THE PARTIES
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16.
California.
17.
California.
18.
California.
19.
20.

11/

11/

11/

11/

/1

/1

/1

/1
/1

Plaintiff Natalie Pappas is a resident and citizen of Los Angeles,

Plaintiff Russell Marchewka is a resident and citizen of Santa Ana,

Plaintiff Christopher Evans is a resident and citizen of Los Angeles,

Plaintiff Gina Park is a resident and citizen of Los Angeles, California.

Defendant is a corporation with its principal place of business at 1333 S.

Mayflower Avenue, Monrovia, California, 91016. Defendant manufactures, markets,
and sells the Naked Juice Products from its headquarters in California to consumers in

California and throughout the United States at retail.
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SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS
Defendant Deceptively Labels The Naked Juice Products As “All Natural”

21. Through its advertising and labeling, Defendant has created a brand that is
practically synonymous with its “natural” message. As Defendant explains on its

website, for example, the name “Naked” means that Defendant uses only natural

ingredients, and no “other junk”:

WHERE TO BUY

back to top

ALL NATURAL INGREDIENTS (]

AT NAKED. WE LIKE TO
GO AU NATURAL!

Mother Nature gave us some pretty great stuff to play with — and the best
partis, it's all good. And given our name is Naked, it'd be pretty lame to
cover up the wonderful taste of Earth's delicious bounty with artificial
flavors, added sugars and other junk.

So every time your body is craving something refreshing, delicious and >
made with all-natural fruits and vegetables, you can be 100 percent sure

that every Naked product is providing you with just that. And that’s our

Naked Truth!

% No added sugar
g No preservatives

<http://nakedjuice.com/our-purpose> (last visited June 4, 2012).

/1

/1

/1
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22. Defendant has prominently labeled and advertised its products as “All

Natural,” including, for example, as pictured below:

/

4
GOLD> mALHNE

23. The dictionary defines the term “natural” as “existing in or produced by
nature: not artificial.”’ This common dictionary definition of the term “natural” is
consistent with the expectations of a reasonable consumer.

24, A reasonable consumer would not consider food products containing
unnaturally processed, synthetic substances, substances created via chemical
processing, or genetically modified organisms (“GMOs”) to be “All Natural.”

25. Naked Juice Products contain substances that are synthetic, substances
created via chemical processing, and/or GMOs, rendering Defendant’s claims that the
Products are “All Natural” false. Without limitation, the following Naked Juice
Products are labeled “All Natural” but contain non-natural ingredients and therefore are
not “All Natural”: Acai Machine, Berry Veggie, Blue Machine, Gold Machine, Green
Machine, Mango Veggie, Mighty Mango, Pomegranate Acai, Power C Machine,
Protein Zone, Protein Zone Double Berry, Protein Zone Mango, and Red Machine. As

' WEBSTER’S NINTH NEW COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 788 (1990).
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reflected in Exhibit A, the following is a non-exhaustive list of non-natural ingredients
contained in the Products:

26. ASCORBIC ACID: Defendant labels ascorbic acid as Vitamin C.
Ascorbic acid occurs naturally in certain foods as Vitamin C, or L-ascorbic acid.
However, ascorbic acid used as a Vitamin C supplement in foods is not naturally-
occurring. Rather, it is synthesized through a combined chemical-organic process
known as the Reichstein Process. The Reichstein Process uses the following steps: (a)
hydrogenation of D-glucose to D-sorbitol, an organic reaction with nickel as a catalyst
under high temperature and high pressure; (b) Microbial oxidation or fermentation of
sorbitol to L-sorbose with acetobacter at pH 4-6 and 30° C; (c) protection of the 4
hydroxyl groups in sorbose by formation of the acetal with acetone and an acid to
Diacetone-L-sorbose (2,3:4,6—Diisopropyliden—a—L—sorbose); (d) Organic oxidation
with potassium permanganate followed by heating with water to yield 2-Keto-L-gulonic
acid; and (e) a ring-closing step or gamma lactonization with removal of water. In
recent years, Chinese chemists have developed a simplification of the Reichstein
Process that substitutes biological oxidation using genetically engineered
microorganisms for chemical oxidation.

217. Manufactured ascorbic acid is chemically identical to naturally-occurring
Vitamin C, with both substances having the chemical formula C¢HgO4. However, its
chemical manufacturing process places it outside of a reasonable consumer’s definition
of “All Natural.”

28. BETA CAROTENE: Defendant labels beta carotene as Vitamin A. Beta
carotene occurs naturally in many foods. However, most, though not all, beta carotene
added as a supplement to food is produced synthetically. Synthetic beta carotene is
produced in two ways: (a) through a Wittig Reaction, a chemical reaction of an
aldehyde or ketone with a triphenyl phosphonium yield (often called a Wittig reagent)

to give an alkene and triphenylphosphine oxide; or (b) through a Grignard Reaction, an

7
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organometallic chemical reaction in which alkyl- or aryl-magnesium halides (Grignard
reagents) add to a carbonyl group in an aldehyde or ketone.

29. Synthetic beta carotene’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside
of a reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

30. Vitamin A is a compound also known as retinal, with the chemical formula
C,0H;300. Beta carotene 1s a different substance, with the chemical formula C,yHss.
Beta carotene is a precursor to Vitamin A, with one molecule of ingested beta carotene
being cleaved into two molecules of Vitamin A within the intestinal tract. However,
beta carotene is not itself Vitamin A.

31. Thus, regardless of the provenance of the beta carotene in Naked Juice
products, labeling it as Vitamin A is misleading.

32. BIOTIN: Biotin, also known as Vitamin H, occurs naturally in certain
foods. Biotin used as a food supplement is created synthetically using a process first
developed by Leo Sternbach and Moses Wolf Goldberg in 1949. The process involves
(a) three steps to create an imidazolinone ring, using fumaric acid as a starting material;
(b) 6 steps to install a side chain, by addition of a Grignard reagent, followed by
malonate and decarboxylization; and (c) 6 steps to introduce chirality, by fractional
crystallization of diastereomeric salts. Various improvements to the original method
have been developed, including (1) reduction of the second process to two steps via (1) a
Fukuyama coupling between thiolactone and organozinc reagent; and (i1) reduction of
3° alcohol; and (2) substitution of enantioselective desymmetrization in the chirality-
introduction process.

33. Synthetic biotin is chemically identical to the naturally-occurring variety.
However, its chemical manufacturing process places it outside of a reasonable
consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

34. CHOLINE BITARTRATE: The side labels of Naked Juice Products

containing choline bitartrate on the ingredient list state that the products contain

8
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choline. Choline bitartrate is a synthetic substitute for choline (a B-complex vitamin)
which is manufactured through the reaction of trimethylamine with ethylene oxide,
followed by treatment with tartartic acid.

35. Choline bitartrate’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside of a
reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

36. Moreover, choline bitartrate, with the chemical formula CoH;4NO-, 1s a
different substance from choline, which has the chemical formula CsH;4sNO. Thus,
Defendant’s equation of choline bitartrate with choline on the labels of Naked Juice
products is misleading, irrespective of the fact that it is produced via chemical
processing.

37. CYANOCOBALAMIN: Defendant labels cyanocobalamin as Vitamin
B12. Cyanocobalamin is a synthetic substitute for Vitamin B12 (cobalamin). It is
manufactured via fermentation by a variety of microorganisms, yielding a mixture of
methyl-, hydroxo-, and adenosylcobalamin. These compounds are then extracted and
converted to cyanocobalamin by addition of potassium cyanide in the presence of
sodium nitrite and heat.

38. Cyanocobalamin’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside of a
reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

39. Moreover, cyanocobalamin, with the chemical formula Cg;HggCoN14,044P,
is a different substance from Vitamin B12 (cobalamin), which has the chemical formula
Ce2HgsCoN13014P. Thus, labeling cyanocobalamin as Vitamin B12 is misleading,
irrespective of the fact that it is produced via chemical processing.

40. D-CALCIUM PANTOTHENATE: Defendant labels d-calcium
pantothenate as Vitamin B5. D-calcium pantothenate is a chemical salt used as a
substitute for Vitamin B5 (pantothenic acid). It is produced synthetically for
commercial use from isobutyraldehyde and formaldehyde via 1,1-dimethyl-2-hydroxy-

propionaldehyde and pantolactone.

9
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41. D-calcium pantothenate’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside
of a reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

42. Moreover, d-calcium pantothenate, with the chemical formula
CsH3,CaN,0,y, 1s a different substance from pantothenic acid (Vitamin BS5), which has
the chemical formula CoH;7NOs. Thus, labeling d-calcium pantothenate as Vitamin B5
1s misleading, irrespective of the fact that it is produced via chemical processing.

43. FIBERSOL®-2: Fibersol®-2 is a proprietary digestion-resistant
maltodextrin dietary fiber developed by Japan’s Matsutani Chemical Industry Co., Ltd.,
and manufactured by Archer Daniels Midland in conjunction with Matsutani America,
Inc. Fibersol®-2 is produced by ‘“‘a proprietary method of enzymatic hydrolysis of
cornstarch.” The process is designed “to purposefully rearrange corn starch molecules
to convert a portion of normal alpha -1,4- glucose linkages to random 1,2-, 1,3-, and
1,4- alpha and beta linkages,” thus rendering the substance largely indigestible.

44. Fibersol®-2’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside of a
reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

45. FRUCTOOLIGOSACCHARIDES: Fructoologisaccharides are a
category of long-chain carbohydrates used as sweeteners and as dietary fiber.
Fructooligosaccharides occur naturally in certain fruits and vegetables, but
fructooligosaccharides added to food are more commonly commercially synthesized
using one of two chemical processes: (a) Enzymatic or chemical degradation of inulin
to a mixture of oligosaccharides with the general structure Glu-(Fru), (GF,) and Fru,,
(Fm), with n and m ranging from 1 to 7; or (b) transfructosylation action of a 3-
fructosidase of Aspergillus niger (a toxic black mold) on sucrose.

46. The chemical manufacturing process of synthetic fructooligosaccahrides
places them outside of a reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

47. INULIN: Inulin is a fiber occurring in a number of plants. The form of

inulin added to food products is produced by (a) extracting natural inulin from the root
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of the chicory plant via hot water diffusion; (b) enzymatically hydrolyzing the extracted
inulin to yield oligofructose-enriched inulin; and (c) drying the resulting substance to a
powder for use in food.

48. Inulin’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside of a reasonable
consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

49. NIACINAMIDE: Defendant labels niacinimide as Vitamin B3.
Niacinimide is a synthetic substitute for Vitamin B3 (niacin) which is industrially
produced by a variety of methods, including: (a) esterifying nicotinic acid with
methanol, followed by ammonolyis; (b) passing ammonia gas into molten nicotinic
acid (amidation); and (c) partial hydrolysis of 3-cyanopyridine. Additionally, Lonza
Fine Chemicals and Specialities, a Swiss company claiming to supply over half the
world’s niacinimide, employs a four-stage synthesis using nylon 6.6 byproduct 3-
methyl-1,5-diaminopentane as starting material. This is transformed into picoline,
which is ammoxidated and then biocatalytically hydrolysed to niacinamide.

50. Niacinamide’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside of a
reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

51. Moreover, niacinamide, with the chemical formula C;H,N,O, is a different
substance from Vitamin B3 (niacin), which has the chemical formula C¢HsNO,. Thus,
labeling niacinamide as Vitamin B3 is misleading, irrespective of the fact that it is
produced via chemical processing.

52. PYRIDOXINE HYDROCHLORIDE: Defendant labels pyridoxine
hydrochloride as Vitamin B6. Pyridoxine hydrochloride is a synthetic form of Vitamin
B6 produced by the condensation of ethoxyacetylacetone with cyanoacetamide.

53. Pyridoxine hydrochloride’s chemical manufacturing process places it
outside of a reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

54. SOY LECITHIN: Soy Lecithin is used in food as an emulsifier, as a

lubricant, and to extend shelf life.
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55. In order to extract soy lecithin from soybeans, the soybeans are immersed
in hexane, a byproduct of petroleum refining, before further processing.

56. Soy Lecithin’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside of a
reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

57. SOY PROTEIN ISOLATE: Soy protein isolate is used in food to
improve texture, to increase protein content, to enhance moisture retention, and as an
emulsifier.

58. In order to extract soy protein isolate from soybeans, the soybeans are first
immersed in hexane, a byproduct of petroleum refining. The beans are then processed
into flour. Aqueous extraction is then carried out at a pH below 9. The extract is
clarified to remove the insoluble material and the "supernatant” is acidified to a pH
range of 4-5. The precipitated protein-curd is collected and separated from the whey by
centrifuge. The curd is usually neutralized with alkali to form a sodium proteinate salt
before drying.

59. Soy protein isolate’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside of a
reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

60. ZINC METHIONINE SULFATE: Zinc methionine sulfate is
synthesized via a reaction between equimolar amounts of zinc sulfate and DL-
methionine in purified water.

61. Zinc methionine sulfate’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside
of a reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

62. ZINC OXIDE: Zinc oxide is synthesized using three main chemical
processes: (1) Indirect process: Metallic zinc is melted in a graphite crucible and
vaporized at temperatures above 907 °C (typically around 1000 °C). Zinc vapor reacts
with the oxygen in the air to give ZnO, accompanied by a drop in its temperature and
bright luminescence. Zinc oxide particles are then transported into a cooling duct and

collected in a bag house; (2) Direct process: The direct process starts with diverse

12

AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




Cas

O© 0 3 O U S~ W N =

N NN N NN N N N = = e e e e e e
o 9 O »n A W N = © OV 0O NN NN BN WD = O

e 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 14 of 41 Page ID #:806

contaminated zinc composites, such as zinc ores or smelter by-products. The zinc
precursors are reduced (carbothermal reduction) by heating with a source of carbon
such as anthracite to produce zinc vapor. The Zinc vapor is then oxidized as in the
indirect process; and (3) Wet chemical process: This process starts with aqueous
solutions of purified zinc salts, from which zinc carbonate or zinc hydroxide is
precipitated. The precipitate is then filtered, washed, dried and calcined at temperatures
around 800 °C.

63. Zinc oxide’s chemical manufacturing process places it outside of a
reasonable consumer’s definition of “All Natural.”

Defendant Deceptively Labels the Naked Juice Products As “Non-GMO” and

States That It Does Not Use GMO Ingredients As A Matter Of Principle

64. In addition to the “natural” claims, all of Defendant’s Products claim to be
“non-GMO” on the product packaging. Additionally, Defendant’s Product labels state
that “Naked Juice does not use ingredients that were produced using biotechnology as a
matter of principle.” See Exhibit A.

65. A reasonable consumer would expect a food product labeled as “natural”
or “all natural” to not contain genetically modified ingredients.

66. A reasonable consumer would expect a food product labeled as “non-
GMO” to not contain genetically modified ingredients.

67. A reasonable consumer would expect a food product label stating that the
product manufacturer does not use ingredients that were produced using biotechnology
as a matter of principle to never use GMO ingredients and to implement quality control
measures to assure the same.

68. Genetically modified food has had its genetic makeup altered to exhibit
traits that the food does not naturally contain. This process is known as bio-
engineering. In general, genetically modified plants and organisms are made by

copying desired traits from another organism and implanting them into the subject
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[E—

organism. These bio-engineered organisms express traits that normally would not
appear in nature. Thus, organisms produced through bio-engineering, i.e. GMOs, do
not occur naturally.

69. Third party testing reveals that Defendant utilizes genetically modified soy
ingredients in the Products. Based on this testing and discussions with consultants,
Plaintiffs allege that Defendant’s “non-GMO” representations are false and deceptive
on the labels of the following Products, each of which includes Soy Protein Isolate

and/or Soy Lecithin: Acai Machine, Protein Zone, Protein Zone Double Berry, Protein

O© o0 3 O W S~ W N

Zone Mango, and Pomegranate Acai. See Exhibit A.

—_
O

70. It is unsurprising that the processed soy products that Defendant

[E—
[E—

incorporates into its Products include GMO soy, given that the vast majority of soy

—_
\®}

products — particularly in the United States — now include GMOs. See, e.g., GMO

—_—
W

Compass, USA. Cultivation of GM Plants in 2009, Maize, soybean, cotton: 88 percent

_
N

genetically modified (2009), available at <http://www.gmo-

—_—
()}

compass.org/eng/agri_biotechnology/gmo_planting/506.usa_cultivation gm_plants 20
09.html> (last visited May 24, 2012).

—_—
N O

71. Defendant’s representations that it does not use ingredients “produced

—_—
o0

using biotechnology” is entirely incompatible with its use of ingredients such as

—
e

Fibersol-2, which according to its manufacturers, Archer Daniels Midland Company

[\
S

and Matsutani Chemical Industry Co., is made from corn, including genetically

[\
—

modified corn. See Archer Daniels Midland Company, ADM Corn Sweeteners: Origin
of ADM Corn Sweetener Products — Fibersol-2 (Dec. 23, 2002), available at

NN
(VS \S)

<http://www.matsutaniamerica.com/pdf/origin_of fibersol.pdf> (last visited May 29,

[\
~

2012); <http://www fibersol2.com/Solve/faq.asp> (“When Fibersol®-2 is made in the

[\
()}

U.S. it is made from both genetically modified and non-genetically modified corn. The

[\
o)}

corn processing supply chain simply does not allow for segregation of these types of

NN
(oI |
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corn.”) (last visited May 29, 2012). Thus, Blue Machine, which contains Fibersol-2,
contains GMO ingredients contrary to Defendant’s label representations.

72. Much information concerning the GMO content in Defendant’s Products is
known only to Defendant, and Plaintiffs expect that discovery in this action will reveal

(14

further information showing that Defendant’s “non-GMO” representations are false.

73. Indeed, the FDA recognizes that “[a] manufacturer who claims that a
food or its ingredients, including foods such as raw agricultural commodities, is not
bioengineered should be able to substantiate that the claim is truthful and not
misleading,” preferably through “validated test methods™ or, where testing may not be
effective because a given ingredient is highly processed, through careful
documentation concerning the source of such ingredients. FDA, Guidance for
Industry: Voluntary Labeling Indicating Whether Foods Have or Have Not Been
Developed Using Bioengineering; Draft Guidance (2001), available at < http://
www.fda.gov/food/guidancecomplianceregulatoryinformation/guidancedocuments/foo
dlabelingnutrition/ucm059098.htm> (last visited May 24, 2012). Defendant must have
substantiation for its “non-GMO” claims.

PLAINTIFFS PURCHASE NAKED JUICE PRODUCTS IN RELIANCE ON
DEFENDANT’S MISREPRESENTATIONS

74. Ms. Pappas purchased many Naked Juice Products in California in the past
four years in reliance on Defendant’s representations and omissions that the Products
contained only: “All Natural” ingredients” and “non-GMO” ingredients. These
representations and omissions were material to Ms. Pappas’ decision to purchase the
Products. Ms. Pappas was willing to pay for the Products because of these
representations and omissions, and would not have purchased, would not have paid as
much for the Products, or would have purchased alternative products in absence of

these representations and omissions.
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75. Specifically, Ms. Pappas has purchased all of the Products, in addition to
other Naked Juice beverages.

76. Mr. Marchewka purchased many Naked Juice Products in California in the
the past four years in reliance on Defendant’s representations and omissions that the
Products contained only: “All Natural” ingredients and “non-GMO” ingredients.
These representations and omissions were material to Mr. Marchewka’s decision to
purchase the Products. Mr. Marchewka was willing to pay for the Products because of
these representations and omissions, and would not have purchased, would not have
paid as much for the Products, or would have purchased alternative products, in absence
of these representations and omissions.

77. Specifically, Mr. Marchewka purchased at least the following Naked Juice
Products: Acai Machine, Blue Machine, Green Machine, Mighty Mango, Power C
Machine, Protein Zone, Protein Zone Double Berry, Protein Zone Mango and Red
Machine.

78. Mr. Evans purchased many Naked Juice Products in California in the past
four years in reliance on Defendant’s representations and omissions that the Products
contained only: “All Natural” ingredients and “non-GMO” ingredients. These
representations and omissions were material to Mr. Evan’s decision to purchase the
Products. Mr. Evans was willing to pay for the Products because of these
representations and omissions, and would not have purchased, would not have paid as
much for the Products, or would have purchased alternative products in absence of
these representations and omissions.

79. Specifically, Mr. Evans purchased at least the following Naked Juice
Products: Blue Machine, Pomegranate Acai, Acai Machine, Berry Veggie, Mango
Veggie, Power C Machine, Protein Zone, Protein Zone Double Berry, Protein Zone

Mango.
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80. Ms. Park purchased many Naked Juice Products in California in the past
four years in reliance on Defendant’s representations and omissions that the Products
contained only: “All Natural” ingredients and “non-GMO” ingredients. These
representations and omissions were material to Ms. Park’s decision to purchase the
Products. Ms. Park was willing to pay for the Products because of these representations
and omissions, and would not have purchased, would not have paid as much for the
Products, or would have purchased alternative products in absence of these
representations and omissions.

81. Specifically, Ms. Park purchased at least the following Naked Juice
Products: Pomegranate Acai and Protein Zone Mango.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

82. Plaintiffs seek relief in their individual capacity and seek to represent a
class consisting of all others who are similarly situated. Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P.
23(a) and (b)(2) and/or (b)(3), Plaintiffs seek certification of a class initially defined as
follows:

All consumers in the United States who from September 27, 2007 until the
final disposition of this case (the “Class Period”), purchased the following Naked
Juice Products: (1) Acai Machine; (2) Berry Veggie; (3) Blue Machine; (4) Gold
Machine; (5) Green Machine; (6) Mango Veggie; (7) Mighty Mango; (8)
Pomegranate Acai; (9) Power C Machine; (10) Protein Zone; (11) Protein Zone
Double Berry; (12) Protein Zone Mango; and (13) Red Machine.

83. Excluded from the Class are Defendant and its subsidiaries and affiliates,
Defendant’s executives, board members, legal counsel, all judges and court personnel
assigned to this matter, and their immediate families.

84. Plaintiffs reserve the right to amend or modify the Class definition with
greater specificity or division into subclasses after they have had an opportunity to

conduct discovery.
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85. Numerosity. Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(1). The potential members of the Class
as defined are so numerous that joinder of all members is unfeasible and not practicable.
While the precise number of Class members has not been determined at this time,
Plaintiffs are informed and believe that many thousands or millions of consumers have
purchased the listed products.

86. Commonality. Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(2) and (b)(3). There are questions of

law and fact common to the Class, which predominate over any questions affecting only
individual Class members. These common questions of law and fact include, without
limitation:
a. Whether Defendant falsely and/or misleadingly misrepresented
Naked Juice Products as being “All Natural”;
b. Whether Defendant falsely and/or misleadingly misrepresented
Naked Juice Products as being “non-GMO”;
C. Whether Defendant’s misrepresentations and omissions are likely to
deceive reasonable consumers;

d. Whether Defendant violated California Civil Code § 1750, et seq.;

e. Whether Defendant violated California Business and Professions
Code § 17500, et seq.;
f. Whether Defendant violated California Business and Professions

Code § 17200, et seq.;
g. The nature of the relief, including equitable relief, to which Plaintiff
and the Class members are entitled.
87. Typicality. Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(3). The claims of Plaintiffs are typical of
the claims of the Class. Plaintiffs and all Class members were exposed to uniform
practices and sustained injury arising out of and caused by Defendant’s unlawful

conduct.
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88. Adequacy of Representation. Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(4). Plaintiffs will

fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the members of the Class.
Plaintiffs’ Counsel are competent and experienced in litigating class actions.

89. Superiority of Class Action. Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3). A class action is

superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this
controversy since joinder of all the members of the Class is impracticable.

Furthermore, the adjudication of this controversy through a class action will avoid the
possibility of inconsistent and potentially conflicting adjudication of the claims asserted
herein. There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as a class action.

90. Injunctive and Declaratory Relief. Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2). Defendant’s

actions regarding the misrepresentations and omission on Naked Juice Products are
uniform as to members of the Class. Defendant has acted or refused to act on grounds
that apply generally to the Class, so that final injunctive relief or declaratory relief as
requested herein is appropriate respecting the Class as a whole.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(California Consumers Legal Remedies Act — Cal. Civ. Code § 1750, ef seq.)

91. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege all previous paragraphs.

92. Defendant is a “person” within the meaning of California Civil Code §§
1761(c) and 1770, and provides “goods” within the meaning of Civil Code §§ 1761(a)
and 1770. Defendant’s customers, including Plaintiffs and Class members, are
“consumers” within the meaning of Civil Code §§ 1761(d) and 1770. Each purchase of
Defendant’s Naked Juice Products by Plaintiffs and each Class member constitutes a
“transaction” within the meaning of Civil Code §§ 1761(e) and 1770.

93. The Consumers Legal Remedies Act makes it unlawful for a company to:

(a) Represent that goods have characteristics, ingredients uses, benefits, or

quantities, which they do not have. Cal. Civ. Code § 1770(a)(5);
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(b) Represent that goods are of a particular standard, quality, or grade, if
they are of another. Cal. Civ. Code § 1770(a)(7); and

(c) Advertise goods with intent not to sell them as advertised. Cal. Civ.
Code § 1770(a)(9).

94. Defendant’s acts, practices, representations, omissions, and courses of
conduct with respect to the production, promotion and marketing of Naked Juice
Products violated the Consumers Legal Remedies Act in that, among other things:

(a) Defendant represented that the Naked Juice Products have
characteristics, ingredients, uses, benefits, or qualities, which they do
not have, in violation of Cal. Civil Code § 1770(a)(5);

(b) Defendant represented that Naked Juice Products were of a particular
standard, quality or grade when they were of another standard, quality,
or grade in violation of Cal. Civil Code § 1770(a)(7); and

(c) Defendant advertised Naked Juice Products with an intent not to sell

them as advertised, in violation of Cal. Civil Code § 1770(a)(9).

95. Plaintiffs reasonably relied on Defendant’s misrepresentations and
omissions.
96. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s violations, Plaintiffs

suffered injury in fact and lost money.

97. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and Class members, seek damages,
restitution and injunctive relief. Plaintiffs seek an order requiring Defendant to refund
Plaintiffs and all Class members all monies they paid for Naked Juice Products, and
injunctive relief in the form of an order prohibiting Defendant from engaging in the
alleged misconduct described herein and performing a corrective advertising campaign.

98. Plaintiffs have complied with California Civil Code § 1782(a) by serving a
preliminary notice before seeking damages under the Consumers Legal Remedies

Act. Defendant has not provided the relief requested in Plaintiffs' CLRA notice.
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99. Affidavits in compliance with Cal. Civil Code § 1780(c) will be filed.
SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(California False Advertising Law — Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500, et seq.)

100.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege all previous paragraphs.

101.  Defendant publicly disseminated untrue or misleading advertising or
intended not to sell its Naked Juice Products as advertised in violation of California
Business & Professional Code § 17500, et seq., by, inter alia:

(a) Representing that Naked Juice Products are “All Natural,” when they
are not; and

(b) Representing that the Naked Juice Products are “non-GMO,” when
they are not.

102.  Defendant committed such violations of the False Advertising Law with
actual knowledge or in the exercise of reasonable care should have known was untrue
or misleading.

103.  Plaintiffs reasonably relied on Defendant’s representations and/or
omissions made in violation of California Business & Professional Code § 17500, et
seq.

104.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s violations, Plaintiffs
suffered injury in fact and lost money.

105.  Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and Class members, seek equitable
relief in the form of an order requiring Defendant to refund Plaintiffs and all Class
members all monies they paid for Naked Juice Products, and injunctive relief in the
form of an order prohibiting Defendant from engaging in the alleged misconduct
described herein and performing a corrective advertising campaign.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(California Unfair Competition Law — Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, ef seq.)

106.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege all previous paragraphs.
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107.  Defendant engaged in unlawful, unfair, and/or fraudulent conduct under
California Business & Professional Code § 17200, et seq., by, inter alia:

(a) Representing that Naked Juice Products are “All Natural,” when they
are not; and

(b) Representing that Naked Juice Products are “non-GMO,” when they
are not.

108.  Defendant’s conduct is unlawful in that it violates the Consumers Legal
Remedies Act, California Civil Code § 1750, et seq., the False Advertising Law,
California Business & Professions Code § 17500, et seq.

109.  Defendant’s conduct is unfair in that it offends established public policy
and/or is immoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous and/or substantially injurious to
Plaintiffs and Class members. The harm to Plaintiffs and Class members arising from
Defendant’s conduct outweighs any legitimate benefit Defendant derived from the
conduct. Defendant’s conduct undermines and violates the stated spirit and policies
underlying the Consumers Legal Remedies Act, False Advertising Law, Sherman Food,
Drug & Cosmetic Law, and FDA regulations as alleged herein.

110.  Defendant’s actions and practices constitute “fraudulent” business
practices in violation of the UCL because, among other things, they are likely to
deceive reasonable consumers. Plaintiffs relied on Defendant’s representations and
Oomissions.

111.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s violations, Plaintiffs
suffered injury in fact and lost money.

112.  Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and Class members, seek equitable
relief in the form of an order requiring Defendant to refund Plaintiffs and all Class
members all monies they paid for Naked Juice Products, and injunctive relief in the
form of an order prohibiting Defendant from engaging in the alleged misconduct

described herein and performing a corrective advertising campaign.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and Class members, pray for

relief as follows:

A. For an order that this action may be maintained as a class action under
Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, that Plaintiffs be appointed Class
representative, and that Plaintiffs’ counsel be appointed as counsel for the Class;

B. For damages according to proof;

C. For an order requiring Defendant to refund Plaintiffs and all Class
members for the deceptively advertised beverages;

D. For an order prohibiting Defendant from engaging in the misconduct
described herein;

E. For an award of attorneys’ fees;

F. For an award of the costs of suit incurred herein, including expert

witness fees;

G. For an award of interest, including prejudgment interest, at the legal
rate; and
H. For such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs hereby demand trial by jury of all claims so triable.

Dated: June 4, 2012 AHDOOT:}«S;’JWOLFSON, APC

/ e, B B 4
~ Ty

//

e —

Tina Wolfson
Robert Ahdoot

Bradley King

10850 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 370
Los Angeles, California 90024
Telephone: 310-474-9111
Facsimile: 310-474-8585

Interim Co-Lead Counsel for Plaintiffs
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Dated: June 4, 2012

Dated: June 4, 2012

Dated: June 4, 2012

FINKELSTEIN THOMPSON LLP

By: /s/ Rosemary M. Rivas
Rosemary M. Rivas

Danielle A. Stoumbos

100 Bush Street, Suite 1450
San Francisco, California 94104
Telephone: (415) 398-8700
Facsimile: (415) 398-8704

Interim Co-Lead Counsel for Plaintiffs

RIDOUT & LYON, LLP

/s/ Christopher P. Ridout
Christopher P. Ridout, Esq.
555 E. Ocean Blvd., Ste. 500
Long Beach, California 90802
Telephone: 562-216-7380
Facsimile: 562-216-7385

Interim Co-Lead Counsel for Plaintiffs

GLANCY BINKOW & GOLDBERG LLP

/s/ Marc L. Godino

Marc L. Godino

1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100
Los Angeles, California 90067
Telephone: 310-201-9150
Facsimile: 310-201-9160

Executive Committee Counsel for Plaintiffs
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Dated: June 4, 2012

Dated: June 4, 2012

FRANCIS & MAILMAN, P.C.

/s/ David A. Searles

David A. Searles

100 South Broad Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19110
Telephone: 215-735-8600
Facsimile: 310-940-8000

CENTER FOR SCIENCE IN THE PUBLIC
INTEREST

/s/ Stephen Gardner

Stephen Gardner

Director of Litigation

5646 Milton Street, Suite 211
Dallas, Texas 75206

Telephone: 214-827-2774 ext. 381
Facsimile: 214-827-2787

25

AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 27 of 41 Page ID #:819

O© 0 3 O U S~ W N =

—_ = = =
AW NN = O

EXHIBIT A

[\ I O R O R O R N N S N e e
o 3 O W A W N = O O 0 NN SN W

26

AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




3 UIwe}A
oL

) UjWeA
sup]|

Gg ulweyA
Bu{y

DRy

V ulwejia
noos6
auljoy
BuQz
Deixa
pads adeid
BUGH

JuRLIN PR|g

Auaqlapp
BUOG6

PRISIALRY B UMOIB AlQRUIe!
JMoq d,

wn|d
Ve
.eueueq
l
sajdde
[4

sadeis pioduo
14!
Sallaq jede
8Ll

A IO AR T M IR Attt it e e e

11,

2omf &oow

EIE T T ST ST

SYOAVTA TVANLYN ¥IHLO HLIM

“2ulydew jedse

7

2
AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 28 of 41 Page ID #:820




3[oq d,

19 uleyia
sHug
g ulweyA
mEM—.
€4 UIWE)IA
mEO—.
9g ulwe)IA
Bui’)

3 ujweyA
niyl
) ujweyA
BUQpZ
V UlWeyia
ni00sz

uowsaj
jojye
L)
a|dde
A
wnid
L/
salaqmen)s
A9
SalLIaYd 199MS
Gl
sead PP
8L
uiod }Jaams
S|auwidy L6
ojejod Joams
%
193q pad
€A
sjouied a1dind
hl

i
§
M
m.,
F

x‘.f\lifl N WA et e ML el o A e e

JIHLOOWS 32INr
O3A R LINdd %001

JIVULINIINOD WO¥S ATTVILHYd
SLNIIGIYINI d3HL0 HLIM S3DINF LiNd4 ANV
378V1393A O1 40 AN3TE GIYOAVTS Add3E

JOAVTA TVANLYN 43HLO0 HLIM

wwg Aizag

8

2
AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 29 of 41 Page ID #:821




J ulwejia
nzg
12qy
3¢l

9g UIIBYA
Bug

Gg UjweyA
su|

) UIWEeyA

€9 UIWE)A
mem

PIASIARY § UMOIB Ajqeuj

oq Bd,

,eueueq
I
sajdde
A€

sapuaqelq

€

SalIaqan|q
LZ

122,26528

L“

0%

‘S“

>

AIHLOOWS 321INr %001

a3.1soo04g

SINJIOIYONI ¥3HI0 HLIM JAHIO0NS 301N GIANITE

515008 +Linyy ,_S._:Ez. 1Y

9

2
AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 30 of 41 Page ID #:822




o™
Al
@
I+
< =
S Z,
< =
. -
— ey
3 =
© O
P @)
o Z
2 =
o ~
; Q
Uiz o _._._ .-!u,__ls!i-_.-.._-su______.wun:!-ﬁvs-vhn
S sugts T (405010 Wi e <
% J ulweiA wl B 0002 a3aav 3vons oN Q3LYY4391¥43Y 330 318VHSINAd A
S G wi 10 g (B P45 <
o % W *ﬂg m—:-roozm mu-:qa A\OOOF EOU-UU_—__—UOMQG L
3 JEPERES N —— - T R a3iisood 29
= : MU e unas couesrs, SRR £ | %508 Y o %0013 U SUGITISN K10 LK JHLO0NS 30T G0NTE __ gewanoisn(nofiuog o)
LL 304 530, w i 3]qePAIR) PUR PRIAISI %0 0T "IN Ul
. 219 ulweyia 8 ] —— _ %gu0 e g WM _‘x mOOm " : 4 U] S3}10Q 210U MLU O} PISN 3q UL | pUy m
. Bwuge'z a|ddeauid ¥ U e— %000 9 UITEYA « %00} Y UM m._. n xu ._<~_ D._.<z ._._ ‘S3/MOQ nn.no woy uuc” uESUMM_ =
© og uiwepa  3inij uoissed S ah«eﬂ_.m: «2]H0geMTN23 SIY} 2A0] m
c BuWGE'0 jojuye e TGy
m UIWENA B (UNN43Y HSYD .<u %0 0 18014 Areyaig UBB3A » 334) UDJN]S « ,,OWD-UOU m
V ulwejl Q106 INTH [soh Cocememiuoneg jeiny SIAIJPAIAS3Id Ol « JEBNS PIPPR Ol » A
o npose6 sa|dde P P ey 353 SUIRARRAS JNO 3AL3] PUR PHOM )
m z V) m.:.m._a-%m._ mwm«.cmmmm:w E uj gmis 3sa4nd ‘JSaYSAAY Y3 A|uo 3sn I/ N
()] peipe NaSa v Doneotans |%b_ Ousgumpeg o
¢ paas adeif Jeueueq .awuﬁqwﬁnnwu %0 By josaisajoyy LMMIna} g oY1 @)
M Buge L | 0030INr GINVN:AR LSI ; fi1es suey] )
IMIY U3p|OB %0 BOied pareinges &
W o P 0Pt W0l ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ %0 00384 [ej0) ‘D08 B GTelnos a
X b e re— P8 [aoise im z
™ ”mu___s,_u_“__%‘u__ﬁ%ﬁﬁ L L i el L =
© TR 0107 3 NSOV 380 Inuagiag iuy ‘dBD'Y suiweja >
N s S WP ajeend Pk <
= feamaeu st ogeseds o m_.__@ﬁ_% am_s_na ajddeaurd 1M1y ypm
< A illom axeys [$138d UOLIINN PJOS JeUOnIIINU NII}S
© @
s - aulyoew pjos
o
Qv
m — (@\| Nt v O >~ o0 O O (@\| N <t v o >~ o0 O O — O on < v O >~
(@) —_— e e e e e = = = = AN AN AN AN AN AN AN



fajsied . . ., (Tw0Gk) 20 14 751
sung = Ly = 7
195U8 e
Bupg
sseab Jeaym
mEmN

JIHLOOWS 321Nr %001
a3.1so08

SINJIOTUINI ¥THLO HLIM IIHLOOWS J3INF AIONTTE

sseis >U_._mn pajsaARy ® uM0IB Aqeujersns
mEmh
Jljies

Bu0s ajddeaud |
i dB5|e uaaid anjq Jjojuly e

3moq 1ad,

515008 +Linay 4y, o 119

sung »
yoeuids oBuew
supQL A
11033049 My
suppL A
e||a10jyd Jeueueq
suootp 2
eulnads sajdde
SupOEL Y2

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 32 of 41 Page ID #:824

— N N <t \n O >~ 0 O O = AN N I O n O I~ 0o o O
e s R T R e e\

1
AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

3




N0Qq J3d,

) UoW?)|
Clg ulweja joye
Bwg -z D)
9g ulwejja sead PP
mE_. mN
Gg uiweja ajdde

BuiL’g n

£g UIWe)A 10 J99MS
Bl e/,

3 ujwey
niyl 8
) ujwepn
B/l ZAlL
V ulweja oguew
NI9E6.L /e
.2pIsul apisur
}s00q Sonnynij
2y} 2y}

ysenbs Jnuiapng 4

ojejod jaams .

S}044E) MOJA

0

00} 210R0 MOy 0N
Yy ez uno, e e

A1p U0 0007
240 PASeq ale SINJEA Ajeq Wadiad,

20££9,26528
00062020018

408 58 ULAIA

RETCIGULRIA o G098 ULEIA
S0P EAUUBIA o 5453 JURIA
U0 oty WD)

L

QN34 HY) ¥
4035 W

1€27-858 (118)

17¥9 SINIWWOD ¥0 SNOILSINO
Q3ZI¥N3LSVd ATLNZD

‘02 30INF ADYN 1L0ZO
91016 ¥ ‘VINOUNOW

*02 20INr GINVN *AE 1SIQ
218 NIAYLIA) NIRYIVEDJONYA) 98
NIYLIN) 30180 1HO0H0AH INXOOIEhd
‘(4 NIYLIA) INILO¥Y) Y136 ‘(58
NINGLIN) JYNIHIOINY W9 TY0-0
JOINYNIDVIN'G NIRVLIA) 31¥130Y
TRIHAOD0L YHATY-0 (D NIKYLIA)
019Y 184035 ‘SHOAYTA IVANLYN
NN ‘30107 NOK31 33404 ¥3d
S DD |7
TIN4 01YI0d LTINS CIVHINIONOD
0INC 1048¥3 NOTIIA H3LVM)
1YUINIINOD HOUA 301r L0¥YYD

|eanjeu sjuone.edas
illom axeys

051 JUUEL o HO8Y UL
O ugajolq
fzz stefing

%z 0504 fealg

%) e apesphyoneg fejoy

%2k buqgy wmssejoq

%l fligg wmipog

%0 Buip josais2j0y9

W 00 paemeg
% B g a0y
Janep kjjeg %
R30I SA0F) (G, SOU0Eg
fujag log unuuy
2 MO0y AUEIC) g SHUAGS
(1uDfg) 0z Buneg
$}3e4 UOI}iIINN

B ey suey|

SYOAVTS TVANLIVN ¥3H10 HLIM

218824 oSuew

“a1diouiad Jo Jayjew e se Abojouyajorq busn padngosd
59m Jeq) s__-__!?_s.s__ﬂsﬁ.qﬁ.ﬂauﬁﬁ.

Eou.u_u_._muo,_u:

toévsbzna =a> Juoq
3AqePAL v__w PP o\nbo_” amny sy
U} S3PI0Q 310w few 0} PIsn 3q ued 3 puy
'S3[0q S0 | Eo__ uqu smeqesy)

+2[HOqRMAN23 SFY} 240]

ueBaA « 33 UIIN|S » ,,OWD-UOU «
SIA1EAI2521d OU « 18BNS PIPPE OU
*3S]3 SUIYIAISAS JNO IAL3] PUR PLOM S}
uj yms 3saind “ISaYSI) Y3 A|Uo SN I

qana g ay3

‘noA pajooj
'S208URW }22MS SB
Suipesanbsews jjeq a2y}
0} awed s21852A 252y}

100 0p SyuaIpasbuj Auew ke
Q31VY3I9NYI3Y 33N I18VHSINI

32
AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 33 of 41 Page ID #:825

— N N T v O >~ o O O

—
-

N N <t v O >~ 0o o O
e e e e T e e T e

N on I O wn O
AN AN A AN A



100SE) 20 H 21

JIHLOOWS 321Nr %00l

PRISSAIRY ¥ UACIS AlGRUjeISTS SINIIAIYINI YIH10 HIIM STIINF G 40 ANI1E Y

3moq s3d,

AL LT E

uow?)| Jo Juiy e
B

Jeueueq £/
sojdde v/|
abueIo z/;

Sa05ueW ¥/, |

SHOAVTS TYANLVN ¥3HLO0 HLIM

-oSuew AyySrur

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 34 of 41 Page ID #:826

— N N T n O >~ o O O
—

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

—
—

33

AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




A
TR EN )] “a1dpunad o sa33ew @ se Abojouy23jo1q bugsn paanpoud

N~

A

@

I+

&)

2 z

(@]

< —

- .

— a9

S =

S o

9 @)

o) Z

2 S

- 3

N £ A._E:mi Nc ._“_ Nm_. mv 3J3M 184} SJUAIPAIBUI 35N J0U S30P N PIYEN ‘SaNjLIeA A

ﬂ = @. @ pa1aauibuolq i JS{xa Jou 0p SUBIP3I6UI AW BIUN,. N

% 2| oma°< N—<0=m oz Q31V¥IOINA3Y 433N TT8YHSI¥Id Mu

~~ \J] —

8 O 8 "Poay 3Lofed Mof & JoN

© (NS £ ey u ey puncy e sieos y 32INr %00L wod'3d|n[payeu @

w o~ g “JoIp 8U0JED 0007 3 JAVHINIING) NOS ATIVILEVd M

= e " S S| Popeseg e feg k. ON3T8 30IAF 9 G3U0AV1S JV3V IVNVE93NOd . &eyyanojishinok; uog )

L aMoq 14, | |— %70 o % UMAJE) Al R 3|qePAIRI pue PaPAdI 9001 "24mn) 3yj 5
* —— ot RN MY Uj SSRIOQ 2I0U e O3PS 3q Ued Jj puy —

™ (S %0 9 UUIBYA o %7 Vf UILEYA "S10q JAYI0 WOJj Spew pI0q e S)| =

© sadeiS ajym | = ) wajoug «2JHOGRM TN SIY3 2A0] A

- B¢ siefng —

c SRR, | e

2 sadeis pal y| ONN43Y HSYD ) (%0 Bosegyfmag U - 33 S - O nLu

‘IH | %21 Bog epeapyoqieq o SOAIEAIaSId OU » JBBNS .
=] eueueq z/ n_ma pwm.mm_p_pw_ E *35]2 SUjUIAIIAS JNO ARS| PUR PLIOM U} 78!
% 4 I TIVISININNOD 40 m_n_onﬁm tﬁh u| yms 3saind “4Saysaly U1 Ajuo asn w
. Uy

| sajdde 5| . e B o 3

< 02 30INF GIHVNAGLSIO | o g™

| S311I3q Jede G . ———— -

% sajeueiSawiod €4 | % vsi ﬁ_ﬁ_. . H" gﬁaﬂeﬁ_ﬁ__ rm

! 19H) T304 ¥3¥ ‘344 VNNV S
3 M | o >
] SE W0Jj S8UOPZ) (9] Saliofe) R
1 JLopisu J4VH9 JUIHM CLYEINZONOD 30NN | s s

= e 30V49 G38 B31H) VHINIONO b L] 0} 2WOd[2M (SAA]] INO =>

N HOZIT JRIGH I TIN | 7000y 10Ul lag SHUES : JJe u22q noA aary 21aym <

o) CLYHLNBONOD 31N JLNVAS3H0A | (quinpz) 20 g azig Buiiag SYOAVTA TVANLYN ¥3IHLO HLIM ‘Tede 2jeurISawod 12oms

o ‘VLVN) 3LVYLNIINOD HO¥ 30Inr mnuﬂ m —_e_u_ __a== e

I JIVNYESINOS SIN3IINONI jede pue ASue} ‘ye

) _.a._su!__m:o_uﬁﬂ_om o Q

ks illom axeys 2jeurIg2WO

—

N

Qv

mm — (@\| on <t v O o~ o0 (@) (e} — (@\| on <t W O o~ o0 (@) S — @\l on <t v O o~ o0

QO — — — — — — — — — — e\ e\ e\l @\ @\ (@\| @\ (@\| (@\



L£2p-858 (L18) TIVD SININWOD
4 79919 c6 5 ¢ w g 40 SNOLLSIND ‘03ZI¥NALSYd
A11N39 N338 SYH 10NA0Yd SIHL
*02 32INr AINVN 01020
91016 Y2 ‘VIAOUNON
‘03 30INF AINVN :AQ LSIA
R oss (309G INH

@ gmv@ [eanjeu sj uojesedas

B L iTTAMINVHS

.o_.__:_u. Jo e =§_2__uu§u busn  SHOAVTY j___s_ TN RN
paanpoud aJam yeys sjuatpaibus asnjou 391t 1144y “(31¥HINIOND JDINT

e v o Staatpo o Roes s 30180 LK ) JLIEON W

amoq jad 3143 034 3LV 1YW LNGONOD HOY:
& ¢ 30101 34Y49 034 LVAINONO) 30InF
b J1YNYH9IN0d H3LYM) TLYEINIONDI
HOE3 30I01 31YNYHITHO4 “SLNBIGHINI
'PO0} 8L0J2D MO B JON “UNJj 8y}
Ul {feinyeu puno ase S1ens |1y
f “JaIp 8u0[ed 0° B U0
- | paseq ase senje Ajieq Juadied,
%0 uod|
sadeis a)um 66 9%g Wnigjen
%0  UIWEYA
sadeis pai €yl §
s9|ddec;z b} wjajoiq
: Bizg srefing
sauiaqgan e
SRS |70 iy o0 wag
s9jeueisawod / %2} 096 "qieg jejol
%6 Dligpg wnissejod
& o0 PHIUU, FISSERTd
“.:ﬂﬂ.m.w %k bugg wnjpog
.oﬁ %0 B jossajong
TR b 1e4 sueiy
wod'3d|n[payeu %0 00 Je4 pajeinjeg
sraepion: phe DoobANeat amen | B0 D0ledmal
B - I
+2110GRMAN23 STy} 2A0] ()4 W0} Salloje] (¢ SaHoR
fujhsag sa junowy
UeBaA e . ,OWD-UOU
S3A|jeAIasaId OU « JEBNS PIpPR Ol « § JoUIZJU0Y) Jad SDUIAISS
3P BUWAIA 110 3A3) pue pliom 3w Uy | (TUl(4) 20 |} § 21§ Buinag
imss2ind isaisal 26 e 3n | 19 UOIHANN

uana E au3

1661(107)70 149

321Nr %00l

JLVILINIINOD WO ATTVILYVd

SYOAVTA TVANLYN ¥3HL0 HLIM

Aii2ganiq
2ieurigawod

35

AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 36 of 41 Page ID #:828

—

N N T n O > 0 O

<t v O >~ oo o O
—_— o e e e e ]

—
(Q\



Sp0q Jad,

1

e 3IHLOOWS 32INF %00l -
e osuew ¥ Wr———F Hl.llll ol ! a3i1sooqg
- 2, q 3 E SINZIGIHONI 43HL0 HLIN JIHLOONS J0INF QIONITE
swQz , ;

sdiy asol L

L Bwg0z 7

E SPIOUOAR}JOI] wmwm._o

: snIn /A
swgOZ sajdde
JVIETTH) %l
ejodde seAens
5W602 €l
3 UILIBYA sauiaqmed)s §
swoyLl S {

“RiaAsTe) Uy oewr D-1amod

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 37 of 41 Page ID #:829

— N N <t n O >~ o o O AN N - n O -~ 0 N O = &N Nt n O >~ o
— —_— e e e e = = = ANl NN AN AN NN AN

—
—

36

AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




)1

(ug

G201 75

3IHLOOWS 32INr
NI3LO¥d

paisaney ¥ W0I3 Aiqeuieisns )y
IWoq =d, 3

U0 B
ajddeauid

wnjssejod jo «ME =

5WOZ6
asueIo
3 ulweyiA &
BuLzl ,eueueq

E  uj04d l
\  Aos @ Raym sajdde
80¢ (¥4

SYOAVT TVINLYN ¥3HLO HLIM

s)jsoog+}nijjemjeue  wliler4 Gm&uo..-nm

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 38 of 41 Page ID #:830

— N N <t wn O >~ 0o o O N N <t v O >~ 0o o O
— e e e e T e e T e

24
25
26
27
28

— N o
AN AN A

—
—

37

AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




(005K 20 WL

3IHLOOWS 32Inr
NI310dd

ang?.é___% . .“. ,..; muusgwz_EoE“_oozusaggﬁtmﬁm
Jmoq Rd, & 3 & o2

sajdde
€

,eueueq

wnissejod
swggeg

3 UjweyA
Buipll
ujaj04d

. Aosm Aaym  saulagmen
50¢€ g

SY0AV 14 ._<~_=.,F,<z :urho HiIM
A112g21gnop
s}s00q+pnyj[eanjeue  lelerAiiEIlehle!

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 39 of 41 Page ID #:831

— N N <t n O >~ 0 O O = N N < n O -~ 0 N O —— NN < O n O I~
e e e e e e T e e T e T T o\ T o\ N o\ B o\ BN o\ N o\ BN o\ I o\ B @\ |

38

AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




wnissejod
Bweg/

3 UIWeA
nge

3 UIWE)IA
Bw/Qz

V UIWepA
MZPLLL

uijoud

50€

E K0S B Aoym

PRISIAIRY ® UMOIB AIQRUIRISNS |

3moq d,

sa|dde
Vel
,eueueq
L
asuelo
l
osuew
/e

$1S00q +}INJj [eINjRU JB

(WSt 20 UL

JIHLOOWS 32Inr
NI310dd

S32INF ¥ 3 NI3L0¥d 40 ANITE AIYOAVTS OINYN

SYOAVTA TVANLYN ¥3HLO HLIM

oSuew
“2U0Z ur2303d

39

AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 40 of 41 Page ID #:832

— N N T v O >~ o O O
—

—
—

N on <
— = —

v o >~ oo o O
—_— e e = = N



sadeis pal
L
,eueueq
) UIEe}IA
MEQN
wnjssejod
swpg/ Jjeurisawod
219 UjWejA YA
Bug sajdde

g UJWE}A i
swg sausquen
(xey wouy) €

€-eSawo sauuagmed)s
Bupged L
pa3s xey sauiagdsel

p uso.f g
ey Ewa

| WMI@WUEQ
Supgey

o
D00} UOR MDY R1ON
oo “Wnj 343 i Aeanyeu punoj ase SIens [y
Ne— "BID 20F) 0002
w B U0 paseq & SaNEA AJQ U,
b 2 [ wongmm o yiisgueny
= S| wlon e U
n S| %0\ o %0y UMRYA
o
— g ujajoug
V! e— figz s1efing
—_—— %0l B Jaqu RIejaIg
%01 015 2jespliyogieq ejo;
(NNA3Y HSYD V) |tes  Bugiyumssting
dITIGINH % Oug) wnjpog
st el %) upjosaissjon)
LAY NN 6} 124 pajeMESLNOLO}
.Bw_u."ﬁuuuﬁucﬁe..uu fig 184 paje.nyesunijog
“09 301N GINYN :AG 1510 . B jeg suei)
T %€ 050 pareime
Wﬁﬁﬂﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁ% in"i__s* um.:-:-s_
I %ﬁ%& T AL
T B DI T SO Nﬁﬁﬁ_ﬁ_ﬁ&ws_aw
B e |S1984 UO}HA}N
illom axeys [51384 VORINN

(TU0%k) 20 7SI

a3aav 3vons ON
JIHLOOWS 32INr %001

a3iiLsooda

1VHLNIINOD WOYS ATIVILNYd

s whmoo.m +1inyy d<~_J...F<L 1Y

auydew pail

SIN3ICIUINI ¥3H10 HLIA IHLOOWS 30iAr A30N318

aydpuyd jo A bu

TVAIMISYI 151 paanpoud
@ @ u‘ﬁaﬂguﬂsagﬁii__.ﬁxus

1R 0 Op SU0P

1M

Q31V¥IOINAY 433N I1VHSI¥Id

wod'3d|n[payeu

31043 30} 1sNFNOAJU0Q
"3IGRPAIRI pUR PRAII 96001 "ININj 3yl
U} SSAI0Q SI0W e 03 Pasn 3q Ued }| puy
"S3I0Q JAYI0 WOl 3pew 3oq e S|

+2IHOGRM N4 SIY} 240]

UeB3A « 334) UINIS « ,,OWD-UOU «
S9AIIBAI3SId OU « JBSNS PIPPE Ol «
“35]3 SUJYIAIIAS JNO IARI| PUR PLIOM U}
uj yms 3saind “ISaysaly Y1 Ajuo asn 3

MINI3 JOi) |1\l ou3

‘MOUY 2Mm /S[22Y
J2A0 peay ‘sg efawo
snjd ‘ajeuri§awod
pue sai32qdses
‘S2L1I2gMRI}S SNOIdSN]
¢2A0] 0} J0U SjeyM

40
AMENDED CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Cage 2:11-cv-08276-JAK-PLA Document 63 Filed 06/05/12 Page 41 of 41 Page ID #:833

— N N <t »n»n O > 0 N O — AN on <
—_— e e e

wvw o >~ 0o o O
—_— o e e e ]

21
22
23

24
25
26
27

28





